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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux
Lighting LLP) (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the period commencing on March 23, 2022 and ending on March 31, 2023 (“the period”) and notes to the
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rulss, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS™) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, ifs
profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Cods
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Financial Statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report for the financial year 2022-2023, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

If, based
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities,
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. '

The Board of Directors are also responsible for OVErseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.




= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Régulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of-India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 17, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account;




d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate report in “Annexure 2”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the period is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

h~With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

(1) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 37 on Contingent Liabilities to the financial statements;

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, the
question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or

= otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the period and until date of this
report.




(vi) As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is mandatory only w.e.f.
April 1, 2023, for the Company, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308

UDIN: 22098 30¢ gaVLXM1995

™ Date: P'quub"' 3,102%
Place: Noida



ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independenf
Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Royalux Lighting Private Limited (formerly Royalux Lighting
LLP) on the financial statements for the period from March 23, 2022 to March 31, 2023]

To the best of our information and according to the information, explanations, and written representations provided
to us by the Company and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit we
report that:

(i) (a) Inrespect of the company’s property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and intangible assets.

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including qu antitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right of use
assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment and right of use assets have been physically verified by the
management during the period and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification
which have been properly dealt with in the books of account. In our opinion, the frequency of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property including investment properties (other
than properties where the Company ‘s the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favor of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use assets or
intangible assets during the period.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

() (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the period, except for goods in transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventory were noticed on physical verification which have been properly dealt
with in the books of account.

(b) The Company has a working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore sanctioned by banks based on
the security of current assets during the period. The quarterly returns, in respect of the working
capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such returns are in agreement
with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods,




(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viiD)

(ix)

(a)

(a)

(b)

()

(®)

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the period.

Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees
and security, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered
under section 185.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as
deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company. '

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance.
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases.
Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the period-end for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to
in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations received from
banks and other lenders and written representation received from the management of the
Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been
declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

In our opinion and according fo the information and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.




(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiiD)

(d

C)

(b)

(®)

(©

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013) during the period ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly,
reporting under clauses 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the period. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has made private placement of equity shares. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act and the Rules framed
thereunder with respect to the same. Further, the amounts s0 raised have been utilized by
the Company for the purposes for which these funds were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Compary has been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit. :

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the
period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given fo us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the period.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
efc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to have
an internal audit system under section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv)
of the Order is not applicable of the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly,
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.



(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company and there are no Core Investmert Companies
in the Group. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current period.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the period. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company does not fulfil the
criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Compary.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Pranav Jain
Partner

Membership No. 098308
UDIN: 930983908 BAVL XM1995

Date:

Place:

t3, 2013
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s
Report of even date to the members of Royalux Lighting Private Limited (formerly known as Royalux Lighting LLP)
on the financial statements for the period from March 23, 2022 to March 31, 2023]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Royalux Lighting Private Limited (formerly
known as Royalux Lighting LLP) (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

-

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with




generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAL

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308

UDIN: 92 3092308 B&aVL XM 1995

Date: Wesk 3,20 23
Place: Noida

-



Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLF)
{CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Rupes million, unless otherwise staled)

Assets
Non-current assets
Progerty, plant and equipment
Right of use assels
Irlangible assels
Financial assets

(i) Other financial assels
Deferred tax assels (nel)
Non current lax asset (net)
Cther non current assels
Total non current assets

Current assets
Inveniores
Finarcial assels
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivaiernts
(1) Ciher bank balancas
(iv) Other financial assels
Other current assels
Total current assets
Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Equity share capilal
Other equity

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Barrowings

(ii) Leasa liabilities
Frovisions
Total non current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables
- lolal outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
- tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enlerprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an inlegral par of these financial stalemers.
As per our report of even dale.
For BG.JC & Associates LLP

Charlered Accountants
Firm Regislralion No.: 003304N/N500058

( . [
Pranav Jain
Partner

Membership No. 098308

Flace: Noida
Date: August 03, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Royalux Lighting Private Limited

Hardeep Singh
Director
DIN: 00118729

Note
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1"
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1&2

As at March 31, 2023

55.75
1.60
0.05

1.73
3.03
1.03
1777
80.96

351.27

23273
15.62
1.33
0.22
10.30
611.47
§92.43

82.45
243.40
325.85

B.36
1.11
3.90
13.36

21549
0.53

63.04
31.10
12,66
2077
0.34
8.28
353.21
366.68
6592.43

4

Sanjest Singh
Director
DiIN; 0008353656




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)

(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period from March 23, 2022 to March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupee million, unless otherwise stated)

Note
Income
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Change in invenlories

Employee benefils expense

Finance costs

Deprecialion and amorlisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

"o

0o~ ®

el
-0

Profit before tax

Tax expenses 47
Current tax (including sarlier year)

Deferred lax charge/ (credit)

Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

- Income lax relating to these items

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

Earnings per equity share (in Rs.): 36
Nominal value of Rs. 10/- each

-Basic (in Rs.)

-Diluted (in Rs.)

Summary of significant accounling policies 1&2

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these financial stalements.
As per our repart of even dale.

For BGJC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants Royalu hting Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 003304N/NSD00SE

Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 088208

Hardeep Singh
Director
DIN: 00118729

Placs: Meida
Dale: August 03, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For the period from
March 23, 2022 to
March 31, 2023

1,324.97
6.44
1,331.41

788.18
(15.98)
98.24
27.80
18.69
84.10
1,001.03

330.38

B7.32
(D.48)
86.84

243.54

Sanjest Singh
Director
DIN: 0008353656




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)

(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Statement of changes in equity for the period from March 23, 2022 to March 31, 2023
(AN amounts are in Rupes miflion, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital**

o
"
B
o

Issua of Shares during the period

Balance as at March 31, 2023

B. Other Equity**

R
&

Particulars Reserve & Surplus Other
Comprehensive
Income
Total

General Reserve | Retained Earnings
Remeasurement of

defined benefit plans

Prafit for the period - 243.54 - 243.54

Remeasurement Gain/(Loss) on defined benefil plans, net of income
iae {0.14) (0.14)

Transfer from Royalux Lighting LLP - 104.41 104.41

Withdrawal during the period - {104.41) (104.41)

Balance as at March 31, 2023 = 243.54 (0.14) 243.40

**The accompanying noles 16 and 16 are inlegral part of these financial stalements,
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Royalux Lighting Private Limited
Firm Reaqistration No.: D03304NMNS00056

) Q

v Oon ON

foma?
Pranav Jain

()
Partner
Membership No. 098308

Sanjest Singh

Directar
DIN: 00118729 DIN: DOD8353658

Place: Noida
Date: August 03, 2023




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)

(CIN:U31206DL2022PTC396429)

Statement of Cash Flows for the period from March 23, 2022 to March 31, 2023
(All amaunis are in Rupes million, unless olherwise sialed)

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profil before lax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amorisalion sxpense

Provision for expecled credit loss

Gain on derecognilion of lease

Finance cost

Income other than operaling income

(Prafifoss on sale of propery, plant & equigment

Balances Writlen Off

Operating profit belore working capital changes
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Invenlaries

Trade recejvables

Other financial assels

Other assels

Adjustment for Increase / (decrease) In operating liabilities:
Trade payables

Other financial liabililies

Other current liabilities

Provisions

Cash used in operalions

Income tax paid (net)

Net cash used in operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from Invesling aclivities:

Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assals (including on conversion)
Pracesds from saie of property, plant and equipment and inlangible assels

Movement in fixed deposit

Inlerest received

Net cash used In invesling activities (B8]

C. Cash flow from financing activities ("refer Reconciliation):
Nel (decrease) in long term borrowings fram banks

Net increase in short term barrowings from banks

Paymenl of lease |iabilities (refer recancilation)

Shara Capilal Issue

It rest paid
Net cash generated from financing activities (c)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents (refer to note 14)
-at the beginning of the period
-at the end of the perad

Notes to cash flow statement
(i) Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balances with banks:
-In current accounts
Cash on hand

(ii) "Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

For the period from
March 23, 2022 to
March 31, 2023

330.38

18.69
(3.37)
(2.18)
28,52
(0.32)
(0.10)
1.36
370.98

(351.27)
(230.72)
(1.95)
(28.07)

04.14
25.18

16 80

424

{100.57)

(77.89)

[178.45)

{76.13)
0.15
(1.33)
032
{76.99)

76.79
147.06
(9.14)
82.45
(26.08)
271.07
15.62

15.62

14.74
0.88
15.62

Non Current Borrowings (including Current

Current Borrowings

Lease Liabilities

Opening

Transfer from Royalux Lighting LLP

Loan drawals (in cash)finteres| acerued during the year
Loan repaymentsiinlerest payment during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2023

NMaturities)
98.50 16.22
121.30 285
(72.74} {17.55)
14‘1’&5 1.63

{iii) The cash flow slalement has been prepared under the indirect mathod as set outin Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Slalemants,

{Iv) Notes to the Financials Slalements are inlegral part of the Cash Flow Stalement.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accounlants
Firm Regislration No.: 003304N/N500056

Q‘{:},‘\"\( : L__,__«.-""'

Pranav Jain Hardeep Singh
Partner Director
Membership No. 098308 DIN: 00118729

Place: Noida
Date: August 03, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
Royalux Lighting Private Limited

J

Sanjeat Singh
Directar
DIN: DOOB3ISI656
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Background

Royalux Lighting Private Limited (formerly Royalux Lighting LLP) (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in
India, with its tegistered office situated at Dethi. The Company was incorporated in India on March 23, 2022, the
Company has received approval from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for the conversion from Royalux Lighting
LLP. (a Limited Liability Partnership firm) to Royalux Li ghting Private Limited. The Company is manufacturer of
commercial refiigeration LED lights.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 {“the Act’) - read with the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules 2022 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ( ‘MCA")), as amended and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

The Coinipany has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on August 04, 2023. The revisions to the financial statements are permitted by the Board of Directors
after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

Current and non-cuirent classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 11 to the Act.

Based on the above criteria, the Company has ascertained its accounting cycle as twelve months for the purpose of
current/non-cuiient classification of assets and lHabilities.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (), which is also the Company’s functional currency.
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following itens:
Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Net defined benefit liability Present value of defined benefit obligations.
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Royalux Lightiag Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect

the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accouinting estimates are
recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements is inciuded in the following notes:

e Note no. 38: leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease.

e Note no. 45: classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held
and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information aboul assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulling in a material
adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2023 is included in the following notes:

+ Note no. 3: measurement of useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment;

¢ Note no. 4 & 5: impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts
including the recoverability of expenditure on internally- generated intangible assets:

e Note no. 4: measurement of useful lives of intangible assets;

e Note no. 47: recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses
carried forward can be used;

e Note no. 37: recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources;

e Note no. 45: Fair value measurement of financial instruiments and impairment of financial assets.

Measurement of fair value

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either —

= In the pilicipal market for the asset or liability, or
» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability Q\\
o S

seprincipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.
v.’are
3




Reoyalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole.

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained
above.

Y ol

Recent accounting pronsuncements issued but not made effective
EP

Recent accounting pronouncements Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifics new standards or amendments to
the existing standards under Cotpanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Ruies as issued from time to tine.

On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as

below:
Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the entities 10 disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significait
accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April
1,2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial
statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help
entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and thers is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has nanrowed the scope of the initial recoguition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions
that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact

on its financial statement.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Revenue
In recognising revenue, the Company applies Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive fiamework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard require apportioning revenue
earned from contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone selling price b




Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of contro! of promised product or services to customer in an amount that reflect
the consideration which the company expects o receive in exchange for those product or services at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of any taxes/duties and
discounts.

The company earns revenue from sales of LED lighting

Revenue from sale of LED lighting

Revenue from Sale of LED lighting is recognized at the point of time upon transfer of control of promised goods to
the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods
Le. when it is probable that the entity will receive the economic benefits associated with the transaction and the related
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
which is generally the contracted price, net of any taxes/duties and discounts considering the impact of variable
consideration.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price. which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts,
service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contract Balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s ri ghit tc an amout of consideration that is unconditional {i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Use of significant judgements in revenue recogaition: -

*  The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods.

¢ At the time of entering into the agreement / raising an invoice, performance obligations in the contract are
identified. The Company delivers goods as per terms & condition of the contract, Contracts are of differing
natures and sometimes have one specific performance obligation, and on other occasions have multiple
performance obligations. Contract Liability has been created towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied
performance obligations.

¢ Contract fulfilment costs are expensed as incurred.

Interest income
Interest income on time deposits and inter-corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method.

The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument 1o the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other income
In respect of other heads of income, the Compaity follows the practice of recogising income on accrual basis. Q}\
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Property, nlant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, net of recoverable taxes (wherever applicable), which
includes capitalised borrowing costs less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipiment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, if any, afler deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separale iiems (major components) of property, plant and equipnient.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation methods. estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value over
their useful life using written down value method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

T.._ 2

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are
58

R o DTS S [, R e
as uiacr ana ﬂiC ki

ne are equal to lives specified as per schedule 1 of the Act.
Particulars Useful lives (in years)
Property Plant & Equipment;
Furniture and fixtures 10
Plant & Machinery 15
Office equipment 5
Vehicle 8-10
Computer equipment 3
Computer Servers and networks 6

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on addition
roperty piant and equlpment is pl owded on pro~1 ata ba51s from the dﬂte the assets are 1eady for intended use.
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting Lip)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if any,
are accounted for prospectively.

Cilier intangible assels

Other intangible assets

Axq intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will
flow to the company and where its cost can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost
attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Amoriisalion

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives usin g the written
down value method and is included in depreciation and amortisation expense in the statement of profit and loss.

The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangibie assets: Useful lives (in years)
Software 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if any,
are accounted for prospectively.

Losses arising fiom the retirement of, and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and recognised as income or
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
dale to deiermine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exisis, then the assel’s or
CGU’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUS.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU (or the asset).

An impairment l0ss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds iis estimated recoverable
it Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect
\is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, a
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is previded on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

Borrowing cosis

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Y S

Financial instrumicais
i. Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an item recognised at fair value through profit and loss.
Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss is expensed in the statement of
profit and loss.
ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

o amortised cost;

L ]

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), or
Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the coniractual
terms of the cash flows.

Financiai asseis are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recoguition, except if und in the period the Comnpany
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as FVTPL:
= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows:
and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.




Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

® the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCJ (designated as FVTOCT — equity investment).
This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are mieasured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial asscts, On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI
or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assess nen

The Company assesses the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management, The
information considered includes:

e the stated policies and objectives for the portfolic and the Opeiation of those policies in practice, These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintainin g a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets (o the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

* how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

model) and how those risks are managed;

* how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

* the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activi ty.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered

sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for irading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair valle basis
are measured at FVTPL.

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs
(e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as g profit margin.

In assessing whether the conlractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset coiitains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would n meet this
condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers: \,\&
Ao bomics :

t
\ eveiits that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; O

hay adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;




Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lightiag LLP}
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

extension features; an
* terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which
may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial
asset acquired at a significant discount or premium 1o its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires
prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assels: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amnortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and iimpairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVTOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest methed, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Equity invesimeiits at FVTOCT: These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement & gain and loss

Financial liabilities are classified as micasured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.
ifi. Offsetting

Financial assets and monetary liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
ey

only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends sither o
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.




Reoyalux Lighting Private Limited {Formerly Royalux Lighting HE B
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

The Company derecognisss a financial asset when the so ntractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownetship and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions Whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains

either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transfeired assets, the transferied assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liakilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terins is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

v. Impairment of financial instruments:
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: -

- Financial assets measured at amoriised costy and
- Financial assets measured at FVTOCI- debt investments

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses whethier financial assets carried at amortised cost and debi securities
at FVTOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred, Evidence that a
financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

* significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

® abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;

® the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

* itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or another financial reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss:

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument i

onths). \\,

b \the maximum period considered when eslimaling expecied credit josses is the maxim

cf ‘hich the Company is exposed to credit risk.
<7
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

When determining whether the credit risk of 2 financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis. based on the Comipany’s historical experience and inforined credit assessment and including forward
locking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is moie than agreed
credit period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
® the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

e the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit josses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amoriised cost are deducied from the gross Carrying amount of
the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the

write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the
weighted average.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
Costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by item basis.

Employee Benefits

Short term emplovee benefits:

Short tenn einployee benefit obligations aie measuied on an undiscourited basis and are exXpenses oit as the related
C ¢ provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are recognised in the statement of profit and
\ear in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities are presented as curren '

dation in the balance sheet. \\\}\
N\
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

Long term emplovee henefits

Defined coniribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a predetermined
rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. These
contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The Company has no
further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for contribution to defined
contribution plan arc recognised as an employee benefit ex pense in statement of profit and loss in the period during
which the related services are rendered by the employees.

Definicd Berefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum paymeiils io
vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount equivalent
to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.
Benefits payable to eligible employees of the company with respect to gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service
cost as at the balance sheet date. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined
benefit obligation is recognised as an income or expense in the other comprehensive income. The Company’s
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount.

The Company’s determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to
the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised in the Other
Comprehensive Income.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service (*past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences

Benelits under the Coinpany’s compensaied absences scheme constittte other employce benefits. The liability in
respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Income tax

gx comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the
business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comuy
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to

incomie taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is alse
recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temiporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- taxabie temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit imay not be
available. Therefore, in case of a histary of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the
extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient
taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets —
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is
probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflecis the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to seftle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be real.

Contingent Liability, Contingent Asset and Provisions

Contingent liability

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be

estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of econor
efits is remote.

)
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Royalux Ligh ting Private Limited {Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Centingent assets are possible assats that arises from past events and whoss existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whol ly within the control of the Company.

Piovisions

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
an outfllow of resouirces and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to setile the present cbligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three monihs or less that are readily Cunivertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an
insignificant risk of chan ges in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares ouistanding during the period, The weighted average
numbers of equity shares outsianding during the period are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, share split or
consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnin gs per share, the net profit or Joss for the year atiributable to Squity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shares as at the
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date,

Segment feporting

decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment information
are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate resources to the
Segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to micdsure performance as management believes that such formation is the most relevant

in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. Inter-
Segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

ludes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable 1o the se
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Notes to the financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2. Expenses that are directly identifighle with / alloeable 1o Segments are considerad for determining the
Segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allacable to segments are
included under unallowable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not aliocable to segments is included in unatlowable
incone.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segmients,
Unallowable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a whole
and not allocable to aiy segimert,

The Board of Dircctor(s) are collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker or ‘CODM? within the
micaning of Ind AS 108, Refer Note 39 for segment information,

Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Cuitipany’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for fand and buildings, The Compaiy assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is. or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, To
assess whether a coniract Loiiveys tiie right to contro] the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

* the contract involves the use of an identified asset
* the Conipany has substantially ull the ceonomic benefits from use of thie asset through the period of the
lease and

* the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,
Atthe date of cominencement of the lease, the Conipany recogiises aright-ofiuse (ROU) assetand a corresponding
lease liability for al] lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less
(short-term leases) and low valye leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognises the
lease payments as an Opetating expense on a straj ght-line basis over the ©rm of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and Jease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be excicised,

The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted

for any lease Payments made at o prior to the Commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs Jess any
lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the Commencenient date on a straj ght-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances in dicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of im pairment testin g
the recoverable amount (i.c. the higher of the fair value less cost to sel and the value-in-use) is determined Cft an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely i

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of t
T ounted using the interest rate fmmadine s 1. BRROr SEra s P e
{its are discounted USINg i€ interest rate Hmpiicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, us




Reyalux Lighting Private Limited {(Formerly Reyalux Lighting LLP}
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exeicise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been sepaiately piesented in the Balance Sheet and lease paymeiits have been
classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as'a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the

lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of owneiship to the lessee, the contiact is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease
separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU asset arising from the

head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognised on a straighi-line basis over the term of the relevait lease.
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)

(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupes million, unless olherwise stated)

4 Right-of-use assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Reconciliation of carrying value
Transfer from Royalux Lighting LLP 37.31
Additon during the pericd 1.80
Reversal due to closure of lease agreement (Refer footnate-(i)) 6.22
Closing gross carrying amount March 31, 2023 32.89
Transfer from Royalux Lighting LLP 24.25
Amortisation for the period 7.04
Reversal due to closure of leass agreement (Refer foolnote-(i) -
Closing accumulated amortisation & impairment as on March 31, 2023 31.29
1.60

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023

Note:
i) During the period ended March 31, 2023 the company recognised right of use assels as per Ind AS 116 Leases (Refer note no 38).




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)

(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupee million, uniess otherwise slated)

6 Other financial assets

Security deposit

For expianation on the Company credit risk management process, refer rnote 45,
7 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assels (refer nole no 48)

8 Non current tax assets (net)

Income tax

Other non current assets

Balance with government authorilies
Capilal advances
Prepaid leas= rent

10 Inventories

Valued at lower of cost and net realisahle value
Raw materials

Work-in-progress

Finished goads

Other

(i) Steck in transit - Raw malerials

Inventaries are pledged as security for borrowings taken from bank, refer note 18 and 21.

As at March 31, 2023

1.73

1.73

As at March 31, 2023

3.03

3.03

As at March 31, 2023

1.03
1.03

As at March 31, 2023

12.48
5.22
0.07

17.77

As at March 31, 2023

20483
16.76
39.80

0.08

351.27
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)

(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC298429)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
[All amounts are in Rupee million, unless otherwise staled)

12

14

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
-0n current accounts
Cash on hand

For expianalion on the Company credit risk management pracess, (refer note 45)

Other Bank Balances

Fixed deposit (having maturity period of mere than 3 months but less than 12 months)

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process, (refer note 44)

Other financial assets (Current)

Security deposits
Others recoverable

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process, (refer note 45)

Other current assets

Frepaid expanses

Advance o suppliers

Advance salary & wages

Balance with government authorilies
Prepaid leasa rent

Others

As at March 31, 2023

14.74
0.88
15.62

As at March 31, 2023

1.33
1.33

As at March 31, 2023

0.07
0.15

_0.22

As at March 31, 2023

080
7.07
022
168
0.04
0.48

10.30




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)

(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395420)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Alf amounts are In Rupee miliion, unless olherwise slaled)

16 Equity share capital

a) The Company has only one class of share capilal having a par value of Rs,

Authorised Shares
Equity shares of 10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Equity shares of 10 each

10 per share, referred to herein as equity shares,

As at March 31, 2023

Number Amount
10000000 100.00
10000000 100.00

8244500 82.45
8244500 B2.45

b. Reconciliation of the shares outslanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period,

Equity Shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add : Issue of shares
Shares outstanding at the end of March 31, 2023

¢. Terms/rights attached to equity share

in
Each hoider of equity shares is entitied to one vole per share held.
Dividends

As at March 31, 2023

Number Amount
B244500 B2.45
8244500 B2.45

The Company declares and pays dividends In Indian nipess. The dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors is subject to approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual
general meeling except In the case where inlerim dividend is distributed, The Company has not dislribuled any dividend in the cumren| year.

Liguidation

In the svent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be enlitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company after dislribution of all
preferential amounts, if any. Such dislribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

d. The Holding Comp

y of the Ct

e. Delail of shareholders holding more than §% of equity share of the Company

Name of shareholder

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held by :-
Fine Technologies (India) Private Limiled (and its nomines)

f. Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Equity shares aliotled as fully paid bonus shares by capilalization of reserves

4. Delails of shares held by promaolers

y is "Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited" and the Ultimate Holding Company is "IKIO Lighting Limited".

As at March 31, 2023

Holding in % of total equity
numbers shares
B244500 100 00%

As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares

8244500

No. of shares
; No. of shares at

Promater Name Shares delails ?t ti:is Change d_urlng the the end of the

beginning of period ariod

the period P
As at March 31, 2023
Fine Technologies (India) Private Limiled (and its nomines) Equity shaies of INR 10 2ach B E244500 244500
fully paid -

Tolal - 8244500 8244500

h. No dass of shares have besn allotled as fully paid up pursuant fo conlracl{s) without payment being received in cash or boughl back during the period of § years

immediately preceding the balance sheel dale.
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(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupes million, unfess alherwise slaled)

16 Other equity As at March 31, 2023
Surplus In the statement of profit and loss
Transfer from Rayalux Lighting LLP 104.41
(+) Net profit for the period 243.54
(+) Addition during the period -
(+) Remunerations =

347.95

(-) Withdrawal during the pariod 104.41
Closing balance (A) 243.54
Other comprehensive income
Opening -
Add: other comprehensive income for the peried (0.14)
Closing balance (B) (0.14)
Tolal other equity (A+E) 243.40

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Other comprehensive income

The Company racognises change on account of remeasurement of the nel defined benefit liability as part of ather comprehensive income with separate disclosure,
which comprises of actuarial gains and losses.

18 Borrowings (Non-current) As at March 31, 2023
Secured
Vehicle loan (refer foot note-(1)) 12.74
Total non current borrowings 12.74
Less: Current maturities of nan-current barrowings (included in note 21) 438
Non-current borrowings 8.36

The Company's exposure to currency risks, liquidity risks and inlerest rate risks are disciosad in Nole 45,
Footnotes:-
Secured loan




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighling LLP)

(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Rupee million, unless olherwise staled)
(i) Vehicle Loan
a) Vehicle Loan availed from HDFC Bank amourting to Rs. 4.5 millions which is secured against the respective vehicie and is repayable in 48 equal instalments
commencing from Qclober 05, 2021, Rale of interest is 7.10% p.a and balance oulstanding as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 2.96 millions out of which Rs. 1.12 millions is
repayable upto March 31, 2024.

b) Vehicle Loan availed from HDFC Bank amounling to Rs. 3.7 millions which is secured against the respective vehicle and s repayable in 39 equal instaiments
commencing from March 03, 2021, Rale of interest is 7.30% p.a and balance outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 1.43 millions out of which Rs, 1.22 millions is
repayable upto March 31, 2024,

¢) Vehicle Loan availed from HDFC Bank amounting to Rs. 9.00 millions which is secured against the respective vehicle and is repayable in 48 equal instaiments
commenicing from December 12, 2022, Rale of interest is 7.90% p.a and balance oulstanding as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 8.35 millions out of which Rs. 2.04 millions
Is repayable uplo March 31, 2024,

18 Lease liabilities (Non-current) As at March 31, 2023
Lease liahililies 1.11
1.11
20 Provisions (Non-current) As at March 31, 2023
Provision for employees benefits refer (note no 41)
Graluity 3.30
Compensated absences 0.60
3.90
21 Borrowing (Current) As at March 31, 2023
Secured
Term loan from banks/INBFC's 84.05
Cash credit 147.06
Current maturities of long-term debt 4.38
215.49
Footnotes;-
Secured loan
(i) Term Loan

a) The Company has availed loan against property from Standard Chartered Bank which are secured against propery situated at Villa No. 01, Plot No. 1, Type K
ATS greens village, Sec 834, Expressway, Noida, Utlar Pradesh , The tenure of the loan is 180 months to be fully paid by September 30, 2034, The loan carries
floating rate of interest of MCLR Rate +0.50% p.a at half yearly reset.

b} The term loan against propery from Slandard Chartered Bank which are secured against property situated at Piot No. 10, Block - A, Sector - 68 Noida, Uttar
Pradesh - 201305. The loan carries ficating rale of interest of MCLR Rate +0.50 p.a at half yearly resets. The said loan has besn prepaid during the period

c) The leim loan against property from Standard Chartered Bank which are secured against property situated at Plot No. 10, Block - A, Seclor - 68 Noida, Uttar
Pradesh - 201305. The loan carries floaling rate of interest of Repo Rate+3.75% p.a at quarierly resets. The said loan has been prepaid during the period.

(il) Cash credit

HDFE

a) During the year ended March 31, 2022, the company has been sanctioned cash credit facilities amaunting to Rs. 186 millions. The facility is secured by way of
charge on Slock, Deblor & BG Margin. Also there is colialeral guarantes in form of equitable morlgage on industrial property of IKIO Solutions Pvi Lid, Noida (a
related party). Furher, there are personal guarantess of directors. The loan carries a fioaling rate of interes! currently 8,35% per annum (Repo rale+Spread),

22 Lease liabilities (Current) As gt Maroh 81, 2025
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(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)

(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in Rupee million, unfess otherwise slated)

23 Trade payables March 34 ;;.:;
total oulstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer nole no 39) 53.04
tolal outstanding dues of creditors olher than micro and small enterprises 31,10

94.14
_—
Footnote:
Ageing Schedule for Trade Payable- March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding as at March 31, 2023 from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Wore:hal § Total
years
Micro enlerprises and small enferprises 63.04 = - - 63.04
Ciher than micro enterprises and small enlerprises 29.72 0,92 0.45 - 31.10
Micro enferprises and small enlerprises -Dispuled Dues - > = = »
Other than micre enlerprises and small enlerprises-Dispuled Dues
[Total 92.76 0.92 0.46 - 94.14
i. For trade payabies to relaled parties pleass refer note 42
ii. Other credilor are non Interest bearing.
iii. The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks relaled to trade payabies are disclosed in note 45
i As at

24 Other financial liabilities (Current) March 31, 2023
Interest accrued but not due 0.44
Expenses payable 436
Other payables 7.86

12.66
The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to other payables are disclosad in nate no 45
—_— As at
25 Other current liabilities March 31, 2023
Statutory dues payable 6.13
Advance from customers 14.64
20.77
p As at
26 Provisions (Current) March 341, 2023
Provision for employees benefits (refer note no 41)
Gratuity 0.27
Compensated absances 0.07
0.34
27 Current Tax Liabilities (net) Asat
March 31, 2023
9.28

Provision for income lax (net of Advance tax, TDS and TCS)}
9.28
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(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)

(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupse million, unless otherwise slsled)

For the period from

28 Revenue from operations March 23, 2022 to
Mar 1, 2023

Sale of product 1,324.97

— 3T

For the period from

29 Other income March 23, 2022 to
March 31, 2023
Net gain on foreign currency transactions 0.10
Interest income on bank deposits 0.3z
Gain related to compensated absences 0.18
Gain on derecognition of lease 2.18

Net profil on sale of property, plant & equipment 0.10
Finance income on amortisation of security deposit 017
Gain on reversal of excepled credit loss 3.37
Miscellaneous income 0.02
6.44

For the period from

30 Cost of materials consumed March 23, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

Opening stock -
Add: Slock Transfer from Royalux Lighting LLP 212.14
Add: Purchase B70.87
Less: Closing Stock 264.63
788.18
For the period from
31 Change in inventories March 23, 2022 to
March 31, 2023
Closing Inventories
- Work-in-pragress 16.78
- Finished product 39.80
56.56
Stock Transfer from Royalux Lighting LLP
- Work-in-progress 2385
- Finished 16.73
40.58

/decrease in inventories (15.98)
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(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)

(CIN;U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupee million, uniess otherwise stated)

32 Employee benefits expense

Salaries & wages, bonus & other allowances
Director's remuneration

Conlibution to provident and other funds (refer note no 41)
Expenses related to post-employmert defined benefit plans (refer nole no 41)
Slaff welfare expenses

33 Finance costs

Interest on borrowing
Other borrowing costs

Interest on lease liabililies (Refer note 38)
Interest on slalulory dues

34 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation and amartisation (refer note no 3 and 5)
Amortisalion of Right of use asset (refer note no 4)

For the period from
March 23, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

80.51
10,01
4.60
1.85
1.27
98.24

For the period from
March 23, 2022 to
March 31, 2023

21.25
5.27
1.18
0.13

27.80

For the period from
March 23, 2022 to
March 31, 2023

11.658
7.04
18.69
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(CIN:U31806DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in Rupee millon, unless otherwise staled)

For the period from
35 Other expense March 23, 2022 to
March 31, 2023
Legal and professional charges 10.59
Tour and travelling expense 177
Freight and forwarding 9.73
Job work charges 6.77
Installation and extraction charges 6.39
Repair and maintenance expense B.10
Advertisement expenses 50
Commission expenses 503
Electricity and water expenses 4.23
Rent 47
Rales and taxes 1.53
Generator running expenses 1.28
Insurance 1.20
Audilor remuneralion (refer factnote-(i)) 0.59
Conveyance 0.28
Loading and unioading charges 0.64
Business promotion 0.72
Consumable goods and dies & tools 0.51
Vehicle expense 0.85
Lab testing and R&D expenses 0.87
Security and mainlenance charges 0.85
Printing and stationery 0.68
Balance wrillen off 1.36
Telephone expense 0.32
Vehide running expense 0.33
Postage and courier charges 0.04
Packing and forwarding expense 0.14
Rehale and discount 0.40
Subscription 009
Miscellaneous expense 1.01
84.10

Footnotes:

Far the period from
i. Remuneration to auditor (excluding goods & service tax) March 23, 2022 to
March 31, 2023

Statutory Audit 058
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(All amounts are in Rupee million, unless olherwise slated)

36 Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 on Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

-Basic (Rs.)

-Diluted (Rs.)

Nominal value per share

(a) Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Profit for the perod

Profil aliributable to equity shareholders

(b) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS

At present, the company does not have any dilutive potential equity share.

37 Conltingent Liabilities and Other Commitments

As at March 31, 2023

29.54
29.54
10.00

243.54

Em

8244500

%

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

Contingent Liabilities
Caorporale guarantee given

*In the view of management, the demand is nol expected to be materialised as the company expects to submit the relevant C-Forms and accordingly no provisian is

required to be recorded,

Capital Commitments

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

Capital commilment (Net of capilal advances)

38 Leases

3.68

The Company is a lessee under operaling lease of two premisss. The Company has execuled non-cancellable operaling leases for a period of 2 and 3 years

respactively.

Disclosura in respect of such operaling leases is as given below:
The moverment in lease liabilities during the period ended |s as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Transfer from ﬁsyalux Lighting LLP 16.22
Addition - during the pericd 1.80
Finance cost accrued during the pericd 1.15
Payment of lease liabilities (9.14)
Adjustment on account of modification (8.40)
Closing Balance 1.63
Non-current lease liabilities .11
Current lease liabilities 0.53
The details of the maturities of lease liabilities at period ended are as follows:
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Mot [ater than one year 0.53
Later than one year but not later than five years 1.10
Later than five years -
1.53

(g
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupee million, unless olherwise slaled)

38

Right-of-use assets

The changes in the carrying velue of Right of Use assels for the period ended are as follows :

Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Transfer frorm Rayalux Lighting LLP 13.06
Addition -during the period 1.80
Depreciation of Right of Use assets (7.04)
Adjustment on account of modification (6.22)
Closing Balance 1.60

The lease agreements do not have any restrictive enerous clauses, other than that thoss narmally prevalent in similar agreements for use of assets, rent escalation,
and lease renewal.

Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
MSME supplier as at the end of each accounting year Included in: 52.04

Principal amount due to micro and small enlerprises ”

Inierest due on above =

The amount of inlerest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED
ACT 2006 along with the amaunts of (he payment made to the supplier beyand
the appointed day during each accounting year

The amounls of the paymenls made to micic and small suppliers beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appeintment day during the
year) but without adding the Inlerest spedified under the MSMED Acd, 2008

The amount of inlerest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year,

The amount of furher inlerest remaining due and payable even in the

succeeding years, until such date when the inlerest duss as above are

actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a

deduclible under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2008, .

Segment reporting

A. Basis for Segmentation

An operating segment is a component that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur evpenses, including revenues and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the other components, and for which discrele financial information is avaiiable,

The board of directors have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), since they are respansible for all major decision w.rt. the preparation
and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, expansion, alliance, jeint venture, merger and acquisition, and expansion of any facility.

The Company's board reviews the results of each segment on a quarterly basis, The company's board of directors uses Profit after tax (PAT') to assess the
performance of the operating segments. Accardingly, there is only one reportable segment for the Company which is "Sale of Product” , hence, no specific disclosures
have besn made.

Entity wide disclosures
B. Information about reportable segments
The Campany deals in one business segment namely Manufacturing of LED Lighling therefore, product wise revenue disclosures are not applicable to the Company,

i} Information about gecgraphical areas
Company operales primaiily under a single geographic location i e. India and accardingly, there are no separale reportable geographical segments.

C. Revenue from major customers
Revenue from one customer amounting in Rs. 217.91 million.
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41 Employee Benefils
The Company conlributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans fn India.

A. Defined contribution plans:

The Company makes conlributions, delermined as a specified percenlage of employee sataries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund, administered and
managed by the government of India. The Company has no obligations other than to make the spedified conlributions, The contributions are charged to the statement of profit

and loss as they accrue,

For the period from

Particulars March 23, 2022 to March
31, 2023
Conlribulion ta provident fund 354

B. Defined benefit plan;
Gratuity

The Company operates a post-amployment defined benefit pian for Graluity. This plan enlifles an employee to receive half month's salary for each year of compieled service al

the lime of refirement/exit, The graluity liability is enfirely unfunded,

The present value of ohligation (s determined based on acluarial valualion using the Projectsd Unit Credit Methad, which recognise each period of service as giving rise to

additional employee benefit enlitierment and measures sach unit separalely to build up the final obligation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of presant value of the defined benefit obligation for graluity were carried out as at March 31, 2023, The present value of the defined benefit

obligations and the relaled current service cosl and past service cost, were messured using the Projected Unit Cradit Method.

A. The following table set out the slatus of the defined benefit obligation:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

Net defined benefit liability

Gratuity (Unfunded) 3.57
Total employee benefit liabilities 3.57
Non-current 330
Current c.27

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation fram the opening baiances to the closing batances for net defined benefit {2ssel) liability and its companents:

As at March 31, 2023

Defined benefit Fair value of

Particulars

Net defined benafit

obligation plan assels (assat) liability

Transfer from Rayalux Lighting LLP 2.00 - 2.00

Included in profit or loss -

Current service cost 119 1.19

Inlerest cost (income) 0.20 0.20

1.39 . 1.39

Included in OCI

Remeasuremenls |oss {gain)

Acluarial less (gain) arising from, -
Financial assumptiong 008 0.06
Demographic assurmplions 0.26 0.26
Esperience adjusiment (0.14) (0.14)

0.18 - 0.18

Other

Conlributions paid by the employer - -

Benefits paid - -

Balance at the end of the year _:'_.iS? - 3.57

Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
Service cost
Net inlerest cost

For the period from

March 23, 2022 to March

31, 20&3
1

0.20
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3, 2023
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C. Plan Assels

The Company does nol have any plant sssels.

a) Economic Assumptions ”

The principal assumpfians are the discount rale and salary growth rale. The discount rale is based upon the market yields available on government bords at the accaunting dale
with a term that malches that of fiabilities, Salary increase rale takes inlo aceount of inflation, seniority, promolion and other reievant factors an long lerm basis, Valuation
assumplions are as follows which have been selected by the company.

Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Discount Rale 7.35%

Expected rale of fulure salary increase 5.00%

The discount rate has been assumed at March 31 2023: 7.35% which s defermined by reference to markel yield at the balance sheet dale on government securities, The
eslimales of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valualion, take account of Inflation, seniorily, promotion and other relevant faclors, such as supply and demand in

the employment markel

b) Demographic assumplions

Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Relirement Age B0 Years
Employes Tumover/ Withdrawal Rate IALM (2012-14)
Martality rales inclusive of provision for disability E%

D. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting dale to one of the relevant actuarial assumplions, holding other zssumptions conslant, would have alfected the defined benalit
obligalions by the amount shawn below;

Particulars Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (0.33) 039
Salary escalation rate (1% movement) 0.35 {0.31)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full dislibution of cash flows expecied under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensilivity of the assumplions
shown,

Sensitivities due to mortality is not material and hernce impact of change nol calculated.

Sensitivilies as to rale of inflalion, rale of increase of pensians in payment, rale of ncrease of pensions befure relirement and life expeclancy are nol appiicable being a lump
sumn benefil on relirement,

Description of Risk Exposures:

Valualions are based on certain assumplions, which are dynamic In nature and vary over lime. As such company Is sxposed 1o various risks as follows:
i. Salary Ineases- Mare than expected increase in the future salary levels may results in increase in the liabililies.

ii. Discount Rafa: In case of yield on the govermment bonds drops in the fulure period then it may result in increase in fiabllity.

fii. Withdrawals - if the actual withdrawal rale is turn out to be more or less than expected then it may resull in Increase in the Fabilties,

Iv. Mortality - if the actual mortality rale in the future tums out to be more or less than expected then it may result increase in the liahilities,

E. Expecled maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Duration of defined banefit obligation

Less than 1 year 0.z8
Between 1 - 2 years 045
Between 2 - 5 years 0.58
Qver 5 Years 2.26

Total 3.57
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42 Related Party Disclosure

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, the names of the related pariies where conlrol exists andior with whom transactions
have taken place during the period and description of relationships, as idenlified and cerlified by the management are:

a) List of related parties

Relationship Name of related
Ultimate Holding Company

Holding Company

Enterprises in which key management personnel and thair relatives
are able to exercise significant influence”

Key Managerial Personnel

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
* With whom significant transactions have been takan place during the year

Ikia Lighling Limited (Since September 12, 2022)
Fine Technologies (India) Private Limiled (Since September 12, 2022)

Raina Metal Tech Private Limiled

Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited (Till September 11, 2022)
IKIO Solutions Private Limiled

Ikio Lighting Limiled (Till September 11, 2022}
Royalux Exports Privale Limiled

Inke Technologies

Safe Solutions

Life Tek Solutions

SN Services

Ikio LED Lighting LLC

Krishria Computech Internalional Private Limited
Singh Enterprises

Mr. Hardesp Singh
Mrs. Surmest Kaur
Mr. Sanjeet Singh

Mrs. Ishween Kaur

b) Details of related party transactions are as below:
Particular

For the period from March 23,
2022 to March 31, 2023

Transaction during the period
Expenses
Purchases and Others
Fine Technologies (India) Private Limiled
Ikio Lighting Limited

Purchases of Property, plant and equipment
Ikio Lighting Limited

Remuneration
Mr. Sanjeet Singh

Salary to Relative of Key Managarial Personnel
Mrs. [shween Kaur

Income

Revenue from operations
Fine Technologies (India) Privale Limiled
Royalux Exports Private Limited
Ikio Lighting Limited
Krishna Computech International Private Limited
Mrs. Ishween Kaur
IKIQ Solutians Private Limited

229.84
10.82

0.08

10.01

10.08

5.41
45,46
19.40

296

7.50

0.00
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C) Balance outstanding with or from related partles as:- As atMarch 31, 2023

Other Payable
Royalux Exports Privale Limited 0.74
Trade receivables
Krishna Computech International Private Limiled 1.0
|kio Led Lighling LLC 2m
Trade payables
Fine Technologiss (India) Privale Limiled 34.35
Raina Metal Tech Private Limiled 0.14
Ikio Lighting Lirmited 0.52
Ikio Led Lighting LL.C 0.19
Security taken from
IKIO Solutions Private Limiled 147.08
Corporate! Personal Guarantee taken from
|KIO Solutions Privale Limited 147.06
Mr. Hardeep Singh 147.06
Mr. Sanjeet Singh 147.06

Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties
i. The terms and condilions of the transactions with key management persannel were no more favorable than those available, or which might reasanably be
expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-key management personnel related entities on an arm's length basis,

ii. All outsianding balances with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis and are to be saliied in cash, None of the balances are sacured.
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For the period

from March 23,

43 Earnings in foreign currency 2022 to March
31, 2023

F.Q.B, value of exports 0.84

For the period

44 Expenditure in forelgn currency f;g;zt?::rii
31, 2023
Purchase. value of irmporls
Raw material 385.15

45 Fair value measurement and financial instruments
a) Financial instruments - by category and fair values hierarchy
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fzir value of financial assals and financial liabilifies, including their level in the fair value hierarchy.
As at March 31, 2023

Carrying Value Fair value measu t using

Particular FVTPL FvocCi Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cost

Financial assets
Nen-current
Other financial assels - - 1.73 1.73 - - -
Current
Trada receivables - - 232.73 232,73 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 15.62 15,62 - - -
Bank Balances Other than Cash & Cash 1.33
Equivaients - - 1.33 & - -
Loans = = - a - - i
Others - - 0.22 0.22 - - -
Total - - 251.63 251.63 |
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings - - 8.38 B.36 = - -
Lease liabilities - - i P i 1.1 - - -
Current
Barrowings - - 215.49 21549 - - -
Lease liabilities - - 0.53 0.53 - - -
Trade payables - - 94,14 94.14 - - -
Other financial liabiliies - - 12.68 12,66 - - -
Total - - 332.30 332.30

Level 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not fraded in an active market is delermined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of
observable market data and rely as |ittle as possible on enlity specific estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on chservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3, The fair value of financial assats and
liabilities included in Leve! 3 is determined in accordance wilh generally accepled pricing modals based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions and dealer quotes of sirrilar instruments,

The Company's borrowings have been canlractad at floating rates of inlerest. Accardingly, the carrying value of such borrowings (including interest acerued but not
due) which approximates fair value,

The carrying amounts of trade receivabies, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial ass=ts and liabilities, approximates the fair values, due to
their short-term nature. Fair valus of non-current financial assets which includes bank deposits (due for maturity after twelve months from the reporting dale) and
security deposils is similar to the carrying value as thers is no significant differences between carrying value and fair value.

The fair value for security deposils were calculated based on discounted cash flows using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair
value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unchservable inputs including courterparty credit risk.
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Valuation processes
The Managsement performs the valuations of financial asssts and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes on a periodic basis, including level 3 fair values.

b) Financial risk management

The Campany has exposure to the fallowing risks ansing from financial instruments:
= Credit risk
= Liquidity risk
* Inlerest rate risk

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directars has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board of
Directors have authorised senior management to establish the processes and ensure control over risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework in line
with the businesses of the company.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risks limils and controls, to
menitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to refiect changes in market condilions and the Compary's aclivities.

The Company has policies covering specific areas, such as inlerest rate risk, foreign currency risk, other price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and the use of derivalive
and non-derivalive finandial instruments, Comgliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed on a continuous basis.

i. Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet

As at March 31,
Particulars 2023
Trade Receivables 23273
Cash and cash equivalenls 15.62
Bank Baiances (Other than Cash & Cash Equivalenls) 1.33
Others 0.22

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company If a cuslomer or counterparly to a financial instrumert fails to meet its conltractual obligations, and arises
principally fram the Company's recelvables from customers,

The Company's credit risk is primarily to the amount due from cuslomer and investments. The Company mainlains a defined credit policy and monitors the
exposures to hese credit risks on an ongoing basis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limiled as the Company generally invests in deposils with scheduled
commercial banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporling date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenue
earned from customers primarily localed in India. The Company dees monitor the econcmic enviranment in which it operates. The Company manages its Credit risk
through credit approvals, establishing credit limils and conltinuously monitoring credit worthiness of customers 1o which the Company grants credit terms in the
normal course of business,

On adoplion of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company establishes an allowance for
impairment that reprasents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivable, The management uses a simplified approach (i.e. based on lifelime ECL) far the
purpese of impairment loss allowance.,

Moy tin the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables:

i As at March 31
Parti '

articulars 2023

Balance at the beginning 11.71
Impairment loss recognized / (reversed) (3.37)
Arnount writlen off =
Balance at the end B34
II. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are setlled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressad condifions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation,

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including total cash (including bank deposits under lien and exciuding inlerest accrued but not due) of Rs. 15.62
millionis as at March 31, 2023 and the anlicipated future internally generated funds from operations will enable it to meest its future known obligations in the ordinary
course of business,

Prudent liquidity risk management implies mainlaining sufficient cash and markelable securilies and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit
faciliies o meel obligations when due. The Company's policy is to reqularly monilor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and funding from group companies to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The Company's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:

- Day fo day funding, managed by monitoring future cash fiows 1o ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintaining rolling forecas!s of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.
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Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting dale. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes inlerest
accrued but not due on barrowings.

As at March 31, 2023 Contractual cash flows

Carrying Between one

Aisount Less than one year to five More than five Total

Year year
years

Non Current
Borrowings 8.38 - 8.36 - 8.36
Lease liabilities 1.11 - 1.11 - 1.1
Current -
Borrowings 21542 215.48 - - 215.45
Lease liabilities 0.53 D.53 - - 0.53
Trade payables 94.14 84.14 - - 94.14
Total 319.84 31017 9.47 - 319.64
iii. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a finandial instrument will fluctuste because of changes in market prices. Markst risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and olher price risk, the Company mainly has exposure to two type of market risk namely: currency risk and inlerest rate risk.
The objeclive of market risk management is to manage and conlrol market risk exposures within acceplable paramelers, while optimizing the return.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk thal the fulure cash flows of a finandial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rales. The Company is expesed to
the effects of fluctualion in the prevailing foreign currency exchangs rales on its financial posilion and cash flows to the extent of eamings and expenses in foreign
currencies. Exposure arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctustions between the furctional currency and cther currencies from the Company's operaling,
investing and financing activities. The Company enters inlo forward currency contracts to neutralise any foreign currency fluctuation risk.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary of quanlitative dala about the COmpany exposure to currency risk, as exprassed in Indian Rupees as at March 31, 2023,

As at March 31, 2023
Particular Currency Amount Currency Amount
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables INR 2.18 uso 0.03
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payable INR 5.18 Uso 0.08

Interest Rate Risk
Inlerest rate risk is the risk that the fiture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's main
interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow inlerest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The Company's inlerast rate risk arises majorly fram the term loans from banks carrying floaling rate of interest. These obligations exposes the Company to cash
flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company's borrowing ta interest rale changes as reported to the management at the end of the reparling period are as

follows:
Variable-rate instruments As at March 31,
2023
Term Loan s
Cash Credit 147 06
147.06

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rales at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the
amounts shawn below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Particular Profit & Loss Equity, Net of Tax
50 bps 50 bps 50 bps 50 bps

increase decrease increase decrease

Interest on term loans from banks
For the period ended March 31, 2023 (0.74) 0.74 (0.55) 0.55
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46 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capilal management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all olher equity reserves aftribulable to the equity holders of

the Company.
Management assesses the Company's capilal requiremenls in order to mainlain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company rianages the capital structure

and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characieristics of the undedying assets,
To maintain or adjust the capilal structure, the Company may return capital 1o sharehoiders, raise new debt of issua new shares.

The Company monilors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ralio, which Is caloulated as inlerest-bearing debls divided by tolal capital ({equity atlributable 1o
owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debis).

Particular As at March 31, 2023
Borrowings 223.85
Less : Cash and cash equivalent (15.62)
|Adjusted net debt (A) 208.23
Total equity (B) 325.85
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 0.64

47 Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
For the period from
March 23, 2022 to March
31, 2023

A. Amounts recognised in Profit or Loss
Current tax expense
Current tax (including earier year) 87.32

Adjustment for priar years -

87.32
Deferred tax expense
Change in recognised temporary differences (0.48)
Total Tax Expense 86.84
B. Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

For the period from March 23, 2022 to March 31,2023

Particulars Before Tax Tax Net of Tax
Remeasurements of defined beneft liahility (0.18) 0.05 ED,M)
C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars Rate Amount
Profit before tax 25 50% 330.38
Tax using the Company's domesliciax rale [A) B4 28
Tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses (5.67)
Non-taxable income 2.80
Deferred Tax 0.48
Prior year errorsf/adjustment (0.16)
Total (B) (2.56)

(A)-(B) 86.84
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D. Movement in deferred tax balances

Bal::;: ;?:T:i"ed For the period from
Particular v Recognised In PL Recognised in OCI  March 23, 2022 to March

Lighting LLP as on 31, 2023

April 22, 2022 E

Delerred Tax Assets
Employee benefils (1.09) 2.1 0.05 1.07
Trade Recsivables 4.09 (1.99) - 2.10
Lease liahilities 567 (5.52) - 0.15
Other financial liabilities 0.11 @.11) - -
Sub- Total (a) _B8.78 (5.52) 0.05 3.1
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles (1.58) 1.64 - 0.06
ROU assets (4.58) 4.16 - (0.40)
Other financial asssts (0.07) 0.07 - -
Borrowings (0.07) 0.07 = -
Sub- Total (b) 16.28) 593 = {0.35)
Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)+(b) 2.50 0.41 0.05 2.96
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48 Ratio analysis disclosure

Ratios: Formula: Year end
March 31, 2023
Ratio
a) Currenl Assets
N Current Liabilities i
b) |Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt m—
(Refer note 1) Total Shareholder's Equity 3
c) Earnings available for debt services
Debt Service Coverage Ralio Finance Cost+Short term debi(including current maturitiss of long term debt)+ 1.55
Current Leass Liabllity
d) |Return on Equity Ratio Net Profit afler taxes-Preference Dividend (if any) —
(Refer Note I) Equity Sharehclders' Funds )
e) |Inveniory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods Sold
2.58
(Refer Note 111 Average Invenlory
f) |Trade Recsivable Turnover Ratio Credit Sales =
(Refer Note [V) Average Accounls Racelvable ;
g) |Trade Payables Turmover Ralio Credit Purchases 10,68
{Refer note V) Average Accounls payables '
h) : X Sales
Net Capilal Turnover Ralio Average Working Capial 5.60
i MNet Profit
D | Net Profit Ratio St 0.25
Sales
) (i) Ret Capital Empi Rati sl
) urn on Capital ployed o Capital Empioyed 65.16

Nate:- There is no requirement for reasons as 1tis t

he first financial year.
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49 Details with respect to the Benami Properties:
No praceedings have been inifiated or pending against the enlity under the Benami Transactions (prohibilion) Act, 1988 for the period
ended March 31, 2023,

50 Undisclosed income
There is no such income which has not been disciosed in the bocks of accounts, No such income is  surrendered ar disclosad as ncame
during the period in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961,

§1 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

Prafit or loss on transactions involving Cryplo currency or Virtual Currency No transaction during the period

Amount of currency heid as at the reporting dale No transaction during the pericd

Deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto No transaction during the peried
Currency / virtual currency

52 Wilful Defaulter;
No bank or financial inslilution has declared the company as "wilful defaulier”.

63 Detalls in respect of Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium shall be provided in respect of:

Transactions where an enlity has provided any advance, loan, or invesled funds to any  |No such fransaction has taken place during the
olher persan (s) or entity! enlities, including foreign entities. period
Transaclions where an entity has received any fund from any persan (s} or enlity/ enlilies, [No such transaction has taken piace during the
including foreign enlity. period

54 Relationship with Struck off Companies:
No transaction has been made with the company struck off under saction 248 of The Campanies Act, 2013 or saction 580 of Companies
Act, 1858 during the period ended March 31, 2023 .

55 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:
All applicable cases whers registralion of charges or salisfaction is required with Regisirar of Companies have been done. No registration or
salisfaction is pending for the period endsd March 31, 2023.

56 Compliance with number of layers of companies:
Whara the company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
(Restriclion on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

57 Loan or advances granted to the promoters, directors and KMPs and the related parties:
No loan or advances in the nature of loans are granted to the promaters, directors, key managerial persons and the relaled parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that are:
a) repayable on demand or

b) without specifying any terms or pariod of repayment
58 Figures less then Rs. 5000 has been displayed as "0.00",

§9 Frevious year figures not available as company incorporated on March 23, 2022,
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